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1.0 APPLICATION SUMMARY

Applicant: Hartford LLC

FLU Category: R-6 

Service Area: Urban

Site Acreage: 3.01 acres +/- 

Community Plan Area: Greater Palm River

Overlay:  None

Special District: None

Request: Rezone from ASC-1 to AS-1-R 

*number represents a pre-development approximation 

Planning Commission Recommendation:
Inconsistent

Development Services Recommendation:
Approvable

Introduction Summary:

The applicant is requesting to rezone two parcels (folios 47350.0200 and 47349.0100) from ASC-1 (Agricultural, Single 
Family Conventional) to AS-1-R (Agricultural, Single Family with Restrictions). The request is to accommodate an 
existing sod installation company after Code Enforcement issued a zoning Notice of Violation (CE23010633). The 
proposed restrictions are in regard to existing structures in required buffer areas and transportation access concerns.

Zoning: Existing Proposed
District(s) ASC-1 AS-1-R

Typical General Use(s) Single-Family Residential/Agricultural Single-Family Residential/Agricultural

Acreage 3.01 +/- 3.01 +/- 

Density/Intensity 1 dwelling unit per acre / 0.25 FAR 1 dwelling unit per acre / 0.25 FAR

Mathematical Maximum* 3 dwelling units / 32,796 sq ft 3 dwelling units / 32,796 sq ft

Development Standards: Existing Proposed
District(s) ASC-1 AS-1-R
Lot Size / Lot Width 1 acre / 150’ 1 acre / 150’

Setbacks/Buffering and 
Screening 

50’ Front (Along Hartford 
St and S 78th St)

15’ Sides

Landscaping Contractor’s Nursery:
50’ Front (Along Hartford St. and S 

78th St)
20’ Type B Buffer Sides (North,

South, East)
15’ Type B Side (West)

Other AS-1 Uses:
50’ Front (Along 

Hartford St. and S 
78th St)

15’ Sides

Height 50’ 50’

Additional Information
PD Variation(s) None requested as part of this application.
Waiver(s) to the Land Development Code None requested as part of this application.
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.1 Vicinity Map

Context of Surrounding Area:

The parcel is located Greater Palm River Area, approximately two miles west of I-75, in a neighborhood with mixed 
uses, such as industrial, agricultural, and residential uses. To the west of the rezoning site is along Hartford St. is an 
industrial corridor. The rezoning site is located within a transition area between the industrial zone and the 
residential development to the east.
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA

2.2 Future Land Use Map

Future Land Use Category: R-6 (Residential-6)

Maximum Density/F.A.R.: 6 DU / GA or 0.25 FAR

Typical Uses: Agricultural, residential, neighborhood commercial, office uses, multi-
purpose projects and mixed-use development.



APPLICATION NUMBER: RZ-STD 24-1180 
ZHM HEARING DATE: January 14, 2025
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: March 11, 2025 Case Reviewer: Michelle Montalbano

Page 4 of 10

2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  

2.3 Immediate Area Map

Adjacent Zonings and Uses

Location: Zoning:

Maximum 
Density/F.A.R. 
Permitted by 

Zoning District:

Allowable Use: Existing Use:

North ASC-1 1 DU / GA or 0.25 
FAR

Agricultural, Single-Family 
Residential Single-Family Residence 

South ASC-1 1 DU / GA or 0.25 
FAR 

Agricultural, Single-Family 
Residential 

Vacant (per Property 
Appraiser)

East 

PD 05-1947 
(PRS 22-1267) 4.7 DU / GA Single-Family Residential Stormwater Retention

ASC-1 1 DU / GA or 0.25 
FAR

Agricultural, Single-Family 
Residential

Vacant Parcels (per Property 
Appraiser)

West PD 18-1055 0.27 FAR (Flex)
Construction Office with 

Open Storage, 
Manufacturing Uses

Equipment Storage
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2.0 LAND USE MAP SET AND SUMMARY DATA  

2.4 Proposed Site Plan (partial provided below for size and orientation purposes. See Section 8.0 for full site plan)  

N/A 
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3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9.0 OF STAFF REPORT)  
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4.0 ADDITIONAL SITE INFORMATION & AGENCY COMMENTS SUMMARY  

INFORMATION/REVIEWING AGENCY  
 

   
 

Environmental: Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 

Environmental Protection Commission  
 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No  

 Yes 
 No 

 

Natural Resources 
 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 

Conservation & Environ. Lands Mgmt. 
 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 
 

Check if Applicable: 
 Wetlands/Other Surface Waters         
 Use of Environmentally Sensitive Land 

Credit        
 Wellhead Protection Area                       
 Surface Water Resource Protection Area  

 Potable Water Wellfield Protection Area 
 Significant Wildlife Habitat  
 Coastal High Hazard Area 
 Urban/Suburban/Rural Scenic Corridor 
 Adjacent to ELAPP property 
 Other _________________________ 

Public Facilities:  Comments 
Received Objections Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Transportation 

 Design Exc./Adm. Variance Requested  
 Off-site Improvements Provided   
 N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

 

Service Area/ Water & Wastewater 
Urban     City of Tampa  
Rural       City of Temple Terrace  

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

. 

Hillsborough County School Board  
Adequate     K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 
Inadequate  K-5  6-8   9-12    N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 

 

Impact/Mobility Fees 

Comprehensive Plan:  Comments 
Received Findings Conditions 

Requested 
Additional 

Information/Comments 
Planning Commission  

 Meets Locational Criteria       N/A 
 Locational Criteria Waiver Requested 
 Minimum Density Met            N/A 

 Yes 
 No 

 Inconsistent 
 Consistent 

 Yes 
 No 
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5.0 IMPLEMENTATION RECOMMENDATIONS   
 
5.1 Compatibility  
 
The subject site is a total of 3.01 acres and consists of two parcel folios which are currently occupied by a sod 
installation company. The immediate vicinity is occupied by agricultural, residential, institutional, and industrial uses.  
 
The property is accessed by Hartford St, a collector roadway. To the north of the site across Hartford St is a single-
family residence zoned ASC-1. To the east of the site is a single-family residential development zoned PD 05-1947. A 
collector roadway, S 70th Street, and a stormwater retention pond buffer the use from the single-family residences. To 
the direct south is a property categorized as vacant by the Property Appraiser and zoned ASC-1. Two parcels zoned 
ASC-1 are adjacent the site to the north/east. It appears based on aerial photos both parcels were previously used for 
open storage, which is non-conforming use in ASC-1. In 2022 one of these parcels received a Notice of Violation from 
Code Enforcement for the open storage of tractor trailers (Case #CE22002693). Based on aerial photography from 
October 14th, 2024, and the Property Appraiser’s records, each parcel is now vacant.  
 
To the immediate west of the rezoning site is an approximate 9.31-acre parcel approved for manufacturing uses by PD 
18-1055. The property is presently used as a tractor trailer leasing site.  
 
After the rezoning, the site shall be subject to a Site Development Review and be required to meet the standards for 
Landscaping Contractor’s Nurseries in LDC Section 6.11.109 for the sod installation company. The standards in LDC 
Section 6.11.109 are designed to address compatibility and limit the use’s possible negative impact on adjacent 
agricultural districts. Some of these standards include: a minimum of 51% of the land area of the site must be devoted 
to the growth, and or/significant increase in value of plants; the retail sale of plants is prohibited; all trucks and 
equipment closer than 200 feet to a property boundary must be shielded from public view with hedges or trees; and 
the open storage and/or maintenance of vehicles on site shall be limited 20% of the entire site. The permitted open 
storage is restricted to equipment, materials, and other hardware utilized by the landscaping contractor.  
 
The Landscaping Contractor's Nursery Use is also subject to the buffering and screening standards of a Group 5 use in 
LDC Section 6.05.06.A. Currently, a metal accessory structure on the property occupies the required 20' buffer abutting 
an ASC-1 zoned property to the north. The applicant is proposing a restriction to comply with the required 
buffering/screening by moving the metal structure out of the required buffer and/or setback area following the 
rezoning. 
 
The applicant is not restricting the district to only a Landscaping Contractor's Nursery use. Other allowable uses in AS-
1, such as single-family residential or passive agriculture will be permitted, subject to AS-1 development standards, if 
the sod installation company ceases operation. 
 
Transportation Review Staff has no objections to the rezoning request, subject to the proposed restriction which limits 
the permitted access point. 
 
Due to the above considerations, staff finds the AS-1-R rezoning request compatible with the zoning districts, uses, and 
development pattern of the surrounding area. 
 
5.2 Recommendation      
 
Staff finds the request approvable, subject to the proposed restrictions.  
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6.0 PROPOSED CONDITIONS  

The applicant is proposing the following restrictions: 

1. Vehicular project access to Hartford St. shall be restricted to a maximum of one access connection. The access 
shall be designed as a Shared Access Facility with the adjacent folio # 47350.0300. The site/construction plan 
approval shall include design elements as determined by Hillsborough County and including but not limited to 
the recording of construction/access easements, to allow for the future construction of access from folio 
47350.0300 to the Shared Access Facility if folio # 47350.0300 is rezoned and/or developed with non-
residential or multi-family uses.  

2. For a Landscape Contractor Nursery use, the accessory structures on the north property line of the lot 
identified as folio # 047349.0010 47349.0100 will be moved or removed in order to provide a 20 ft Type B 
buffer, if the adjacent parcel remains in the ASC-1 zoning district; and to comply with AS-1 side setback 
requirements for any use.  

Zoning Administrator Sign Off: 

SITE, SUBDIVISION AND BUILDING CONSTRUCTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
& BUILDING REVIEW AND APPROVAL. 
Approval of this re-zoning petition by Hillsborough County does not constitute a guarantee that the project will receive 
approvals/permits necessary for site development as proposed will be issued, nor does it imply that other required permits needed 
for site development or building construction are being waived or otherwise approved.  The project will be required to comply 
with the Site Development Plan Review approval process in addition to obtain all necessary building permits for on-site structures.  



APPLICATION NUMBER: RZ-STD 24-1180 
ZHM HEARING DATE: January 14, 2025 
BOCC LUM MEETING DATE: March 11, 2025 Case Reviewer: Michelle Montalbano 

  

Page 10 of 10 

7.0 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND/OR GRAPHICS 

Not applicable. 

8.0 PROPOSED SITE PLAN (FULL) 

Not appliable. 

9.0 FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT (see following pages) 



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO: Zoning Technician, Development Services Department DATE: 01/05/2025 

REVIEWER: Sarah Rose, Senior Planner AGENCY/DEPT: Transportation 

PLANNING AREA/SECTOR:  GPR/Central PETITION NO:  RZ 24-1180 
 

 
  This agency has no comments. 

 

X  This agency has no objection. 
 

  This agency has no objection, subject to the listed or attached conditions. 
 

  This agency objects for the reasons set forth below. 
 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone two parcels totaling +/- 3.03 acres from Agricultural 

Single Family Conventional (ASC-1) to Agricultural Single Family - 1 – Restricted (AS-1-R). 

The applicant is proposing to restrict the number of access points to Hartford St to one, which 

shall be designed as a shared access facility with the adjacent parcel to the east under Folio No. 

47350.0300. The site is located +/- 750 feet east of the intersection of S. 66th Street and Hartford. 

The Future Land Use designation of the site is Residential-6 (R-6).   

 

It is the applicant’s stated intent that the subject site will be utilizing the use of a landscape 

contractor’s nursery which is a conditional use permitted under the AS-1 zoning district as outlined 

in section 6.11.109 of the Land Development Code.  

 

The site currently has an open violation with Code Enforcement for a variety of issues, including 

an accessory use without primary use and outside open storage. Staff notes that once the applicant 

has obtained the proper zoning designation, they will be required to come through the 

site/construction review process, during which they will be required to comply with sidewalk, 

substandard road and any other applicable requirements.  
 

Trip Generation Analysis 

 

In accordance with the Development Review Procedures Manual (DRPM), no 

transportation analysis was required to process the proposed rezoning. Staff has prepared a 

comparison of the trips potentially generated under the existing and proposed zoning designations, 



utilizing a generalized worst-case scenario. Data presented below is based on the Institute of 

Transportation Engineer’s Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition. 

Approved Uses:  

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak            
Hour Trips 

AM PM 
ASC-1, Single Family Detached 
(ITE Code 210) 3 Units  

28 3 3 

Proposed Uses: 

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak            
Hour Trips 

AM PM 
AS-1, Landscape Contractor’s Nursery 
(ITE Code 180) 32,997sqft 

324 55 64 

Trip Generation Difference: 

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak           
 Hour Trips 

AM PM 
Difference +296 +52 +61 

 
TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE SERVING THE SITE 

 

The site has frontage on Hartford St and S 70th St. Hartford St is a substandard 2-lane, 

undivided, County maintained, Rural Collector roadway. The roadway is characterized by +/- 10 

ft wide travel lanes, no bike lanes or sidewalks on either side of the roadway in the vicinity of the 

proposed project, within +/- 60 ft of the right of way.   

 

S 70th St is a substandard 2-lane, undivided, County maintained, Rural Collector roadway. 

The roadway is characterized by +/- 16 ft of pavement in average condition, no sidewalks or bike 

lanes on either side of the roadway in the vicinity of the proposed project, and within +/- 65 ft of 

the right of way.   
 
 
SITE ACCESS 

 

It is anticipated that the subject parcel under Folio No. 47349.0100 will take access to S 

70th St. Under the proposed restriction, the subject parcel under Folio No. 47350.0200 will have 

a singular access to Hartford St. which shall be designed as a shared access facility with the 

adjacent parcel to the east under Folio No. 47350.0300. 

 



Generally, for projects with a Euclidean zoning designation, a project’s potential 

transportation impacts, site access requirements, substandard road issues, site layout and design, 

other issues related to project access, and compliance with other applicable Hillsborough County 

Comprehensive Plan, Hillsborough County Land Development Code (LDC) and Hillsborough 

County Transportation Technical Manual (TTM) requirements are evaluated at the time of 

plat/site/construction plan review. Given the limited information available as is typical of all 

Euclidean zoned properties and/or non-regulatory nature of any conceptual plans provided, 

Transportation Review Section staff did review the proposed rezoning to determine (to the best of 

our ability) whether the zoning is generally consistent with applicable policies of  the Hillsborough 

County Comprehensive Plan, LDC and TTM (e.g. to ensure that the proposed rezoning would not 

result in a violation of the requirement whereby access to commercial properties cannot be taken 

through residentially or agriculturally zoned properties), and/or whether, in staff’s opinion, some 

reasonable level of development under the proposed zoning designation could be supported based 

on current access management standards (e.g. to ensure that a project was not seeking an 

intensification of a parcel which cannot meet minimum access spacing requirements).  

 

Transportation Section staff did not identify any concerns that would require a more 

detailed staff report be filed. Staff notes that, regardless of this review, the developer/property 

owner will be required to comply will all Comprehensive Plan, LDC, TTM and other applicable 

rules and regulations at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. As such, staff has no 

objection to this request.  

 

Staff notes that any plans or graphics presented as a part of a Euclidean zoning case are 

non-binding and will have no regulatory value at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. 

 
ROADWAY LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) INFORMATION 

 

Hartford St and S 70th St are not a regulated roadways and are not included in the 2020 

Hillsborough County Level of Service (LOS) Report. As such, no LOS information for this 

roadway can be provided 

 

 



Transportation Comment Sheet  
 

 

 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9 OF STAFF REPORT)  

Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

Hartford St County Collector 
- Urban 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other (TBD) 

S 70th St. County Collector 
- Rural 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other (TBD) 

Project Trip Generation  Not applicable for this request 
 Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips 
Existing 28 3 3 
Proposed 324 55 64 
Difference (+/-) +296 +52 +61 
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted. 
 
Connectivity and Cross Access  Not applicable for this request 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
South  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
East  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
West  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 
 
Design Exception/Administrative Variance   Not applicable for this request 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 

4.0 Additional Site Information & Agency Comments Summary  

Transportation Objections Conditions 
Requested 

Additional 
Information/Comments 

 Design Exception/Adm. Variance Requested 
 Off-Site Improvements Provided 
 N/A 

 Yes  N/A 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 

 



































Unincorporated Hillsborough County Rezoning Consistency Review

Hearing Date: January 14, 2025

Report Prepared:  January 3, 2025

Case Number: RZ 24-1180

Folio(s): 47349.0100 & 47350.0200

General Location:  South of Hartford Street and 
west of South 70th Street

Comprehensive Plan Finding INCONSISTENT

Adopted Future Land Use Residential-6 (6 du/ga; 0.25 FAR)

Service Area Urban

Community Plan(s) Greater Palm River

Rezoning Request Rezoning from Agricultural Single Family 
Conventional (ASC-1) to Agricultural Single Family 
(AS-1) to allow a landscape contractor’s nursery  

Parcel Size 3.03 ± acres 

Street Functional Classification Hartford Street  – County Collector
South 70th Street – County Collector

Commercial Locational Criteria

Evacuation Area D 

Plan Hillsborough
planhillsborough.org

planner@plancom.org
813 – 272 – 5940

601 E Kennedy Blvd
18th floor 

Tampa, FL, 33602
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Staff Analysis of Goals, Objectives and Policies: 
The 3.03 ± acre subject site is located south of Hartford Street and west of South 70th Street. The site is in 
the Urban Service Area and within the limits of the Greater Palm River Community Plan. The applicant is 
requesting a rezoning from Agricultural Single Family Conventional (ASC-1) to Agricultural Single Family 
(AS-1) to allow a landscape contractor’s nursery. 
 
The site is in the Urban Service Area where according to Objective 1 of the Future Land Use Element (FLUE), 
80 percent of the County’s growth is to be directed. Policy 1.4 requires all new development to be 
compatible with the surrounding area, noting that “compatibility does not mean “the same as” Rather, it 
refers to the sensitivity of development proposals in maintaining the character of existing development.” 
The site is currently vacant . Vacant land is also directly east and south as well as further north of the 
subject site. Light industrial, heavy industrial and public/quasi-public/institutional uses are to the west. 
Single-family uses extend to the south, north across Hartford Street and to the east across South 70th 
Street. In the list of proposed uses, which was uploaded into Optix on December 11, 2024, the applicant 
proposed open storage as an accessory use. The site would be subject to the conditional use requirement 
in Land Development Code (LDC) Section 6.11.109. This requires additional buffering/screening and 
operational standards to lessen the impact to the nearby residential properties. The purpose of the open 
storage is an accessory use to the landscaping contractor’s nursery, but it would only allow open storage 
of vehicles, materials, etc. used for the landscaping business. Section 6.11.109 also requires the open 

 
Table 1: COMPARISON OF SURROUNDING PROPERTIES 

 
Vicinity 

 
Future Land Use 

Designation 

 
Zoning 

 
Existing Land Use   

 
Subject 

Property 

 
Residential-6 

 
ASC-1   

Vacant Land   

North Residential-6 ASC-1 + AS-1 + PD + 
RSC-6  

Single Family Residential + 
Vacant Land + Light 

Commercial 
 

 

South Residential-6 + Suburban 
Mixed Use-6 ASC-1 + PD + RSC-6  

Vacant Land + Single 
Family Residential + Two 

Family Residential  
 

 

East Residential-6 + Suburban 
Mixed Use-6 ASC-1 + PD  

Single Family Residential 
+ Vacant Land + 

Public/Quasi-
Public/Institutions 

 

 

West Residential-6 + Light 
Industrial + Heavy Industrial PD + CI + M + AI  

Heavy Industrial + 
Public/Quasi-

Public/Institutions + Light 
Industrial 
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storage not take up more than 20% of the site. Commercial Intensive (CI) zoning district uses like open 
storage may not be considered in residential Future Land Use categories, as this category only allows for 
neighborhood serving commercial uses. Per the Definitions Section of the Comprehensive Plan, 
neighborhood serving commercial uses include those uses permitted by the Commercial Neighborhood 
(CN) and Commercial General (CG) zoning districts, not the uses permitted by Commercial Intensive (CI) 
zoning, which includes the use of open storage.   
 
FLUE Objective 7, FLUE Objective 8 and each of their respective policies establish the Future Land Use 
Map (FLUM) as well as the allowable range of uses for each Future Land Use category. The character of 
each land use category is defined by building type, residential density, functional use and the physical 
composition of the land. The integration of these factors sets the general atmosphere and character of 
each land use category. Each category has a range of potentially permissible uses which are not exhaustive 
but are intended to be illustrative of the character of uses within the land use designation. Appendix A 
contains a description of the character and intent permitted in each of the Future Land use categories. 
The site is in the Residential-6 (RES-6) Future Land Use category. The RES-6 Future Land Use category 
allows for the consideration of residential, suburban scale neighborhood commercial, office uses, multi-
purpose projects and mixed use development. Non-residential uses are required to meet Commercial 
Locational Criteria. Because the applicant is requesting a rezoning to AS-1 with open storage in a 
residential Future Land Use category, the request is inconsistent with the uses expected in this category. 
 
The Comprehensive Plan requires that all development meet or exceed the land development regulations 
in Hillsborough County (FLUE Objective 9, FLUE Policy 9.1 and FLUE Policy 9.2). However, at the time of 
uploading this report, Transportation comments were not yet available in Optix and thus were not taken 
into consideration for analysis of this request. 
  
The proposal does not meet the intent of FLUE Objective 16 and its accompanying policies 16.1 ,16.2, 16.3, 
16.5 and 16.10 that require new development to be compatible to the surrounding neighborhood. Goal 
12 and Objective 12-1 of the Community Design Component (CDC) of the FLUE require new developments 
to recognize the existing community and be designed to relate to and be compatible with the predominant 
character of the surrounding area. In this case, the surrounding land use pattern is of mixed uses but 
comprised mostly of single-family residential uses. The proposed rezoning does not align with the 
character of the surrounding area and present compatibility concerns given the nature of the area, which 
is inconsistent with FLUE Objective 16 and its accompanying policies related to neighborhood protection. 
FLUE Policy 16.2 states that gradual transitions of intensities between different land uses shall be provided 
for as new development is proposed and approved, through the use of professional site planning, 
buffering and screening techniques and control of specific land uses. There should be a gradual transition 
of intensities between the different land uses given the residential uses around the subject site. FLUE 
Policy 16.5 directs development of higher intensity non-residential land uses to be restricted to locations 
external to established and developing neighborhoods. The transition to AS-1 would cause development 
that is not compatible with the surrounding area and would be inconsistent with the aforementioned 
policy direction. 
 
The subject site does not meet Commercial Locational Criteria (CLC). According to FLUE Policy 22.2, a site 
in the RES-6 Future Land Use category must be within 900 feet of a qualifying intersection that includes a 
two-lane roadway. The closest qualifying intersection to the subject site is Causeway Boulevard, a four-
lane State Principal Arterial roadway and South 78th Street, a two-lane County Arterial roadway. The 
distance from the subject site and the closest qualifying intersection is roughly 7,000 feet as opposed to 
the required 900 feet, and therefore the site does not meet CLC. FLUE Policy 22.7 notes that meeting 
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Commercial Locational Criteria is not the only factor to be taken into consideration when granting 
approval for an application. Considerations involving land use compatibility, adequacy and availability of 
public services, environmental impacts, adopted service levels of affected roadways and other policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan and zoning regulations would carry more weight than the locational criteria in 
the approval of the potential commercial use. Commercial Locational Criteria only designates locations 
that could be considered, and they in no way guarantee the approval of a particular non-residential use. 
The 900-feet measurement requirement demonstrates the scale of development expected for the Rural 
Area and the proposed rezoning  would not be in scale with the area. In addition, per FLUE Policy 22.8, an 
applicant may submit a request to waive the CLC criteria.  The applicant did not provide a CLC waiver for 
the proposed rezoning. This site is located approximately 7,000 feet away from the nearest major 
intersection with significant compatibility concerns, and therefore is inconsistent with FLUE Objective 22 
and its accompanying policies. 
 
The site is within the limits of the Greater Palm River Community Plan. Goal 5a of the Community Plan is 
about Planning and Growth to promote and provide for opportunities for compatible well designed public 
use, residential, and business growth and jobs. The eighth strategy under Goal 5a is to support well 
designed, compatible densities and intensities at appropriate locations. As  previously mentioned above,  
Comprehensive Plan policy direction emphasizes that there should be a gradual transition of intensities 
between the different land uses given the residential uses around the subject site. Rezoning the subject 
site would cause development that does not align with the strategy as there are residential developments 
to the north, south and east.  
 
Overall, staff finds that the proposed use is not an allowable use in the RES-6 category, is not compatible 
with the existing development pattern found within the surrounding area and does not support the vision 
of the Greater Palm River Community Plan. The proposed rezoning would allow for development that is 
not consistent with the Goals, Objectives, and Policies of the Unincorporated Hillsborough County 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Recommendation 
Based upon the above considerations and the following Goals, Objectives and Policies, Planning 
Commission staff finds the proposed rezoning INCONSISTENT with the Unincorporated Hillsborough 
County Comprehensive Plan. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Staff Identified Goals, Objectives and Policies of the Unincorporated Hillsborough County 
Comprehensive Plan Related to the Request: 
 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 
 
Urban Service Area 
 
Objective 1: Hillsborough County shall pro-actively direct new growth into the urban service area with the 
goal that at least 80% of all population growth will occur within the USA during the planning horizon of 
this Plan.  Within the Urban Service Area, Hillsborough County will not impede agriculture. Building permit 
activity and other similar measures will be used to evaluate this objective.   
 
Policy 1.4: Compatibility is defined as the characteristics of different uses or activities or design which allow 
them to be located near or adjacent to each other in harmony. Some elements affecting compatibility 
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include the following: height, scale, mass and bulk of structures, pedestrian or vehicular traffic, circulation, 
access and parking impacts, landscaping, lighting, noise, odor and architecture. Compatibility does not 
mean “the same as.” Rather, it refers to the sensitivity of development proposals in maintaining the 
character of existing development. 
 
Land Use Categories  
  
Objective 8:  The Future Land Use Map will include Land Use Categories which outline the maximum level 
of intensity or density and range of permitted land uses allowed and planned for an area.   A table of the 
land use categories and description of each category can be found in Appendix A.   
  
Policy 8.1:  The character of each land use category is defined by building type, residential density, 
functional use, and the physical composition of the land.  The integration of these factors sets the general 
atmosphere and character of each land use category.  Each category has a range of potentially permissible 
uses which are not exhaustive, but are intended to be illustrative of the character of uses permitted within 
the land use designation.  Not all of those potential uses are routinely acceptable anywhere within that 
land use category.   
 
Relationship to Land Development Regulations 
 
Objective 9: All existing and future land development regulations shall be made consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan, and all development approvals shall be consistent with those development 
regulations as per the timeframe provided for within Chapter 163, Florida Statutes. Whenever feasible and 
consistent with Comprehensive Plan policies, land development regulations shall be designed to provide 
flexible, alternative solutions to problems.   
 
Policy 9.1: Each land use plan category shall have a set of zoning districts that may be permitted within 
that land use plan category, and development shall not be approved for zoning that is inconsistent with 
the plan. 
 
Policy 9.2: Developments must meet or exceed the requirements of all land development regulations as 
established and adopted by Hillsborough County, the state of Florida and the federal government unless 
such requirements have been previously waived by those governmental bodies. 
 
Neighborhood/Community Development 

 
Objective 16: Neighborhood Protection – The neighborhood is the functional unit of community 
development.  There is a need to protect existing, neighborhoods and communities and those that will 
emerge in the future. To preserve, protect, and enhance neighborhoods and communities, all new 
development must conform to the following policies. 

 
Policy 16.2: Gradual transitions of intensities between different land uses shall be provided for as new 
development is proposed and approved, through the use of professional site planning, buffering, and 
screening techniques and control of specific land uses. 
 
Policy 16.3: Development and redevelopment shall be integrated with the adjacent land uses through: 
a) the creation of like uses; or 
b) creation of complementary uses; or 
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c) mitigation of adverse impacts; and 
d) transportation/pedestrian connections 
 
Policy 16.5:  Development of higher intensity non-residential land uses that are adjacent to established 
neighborhoods shall be restricted to collectors and arterials and to locations external to established and 
developing neighborhoods.   
 
Policy 17.7:  New development and redevelopment must mitigate the adverse noise, visual, odor and 
vibration impacts created by that development upon all adjacent land uses. 
 
Community Design Component (CDC) 
 
5.0 NEIGHBORHOOD LEVEL DESIGN  
5.1 COMPATIBILITY 
 
OBJECTIVE 12-1: New developments should recognize the existing community and be designed in a way 
that is compatible with the established character of the surrounding neighborhood.   
 
Policy 12-1.4: Compatibility may be achieved through the utilization of site design techniques including 
but not limited to transitions in uses, buffering, setbacks, open space and graduated height restrictions, to 
affect elements such as height, scale, mass and bulk of structures, pedestrian or vehicular traffic, 
circulation, access and parking impacts, landscaping, lighting, noise, odor and architecture. 
 
7.0 SITE DESIGN  
 
7.1 DEVELOPMENT PATTERN  
 
GOAL 17:  Develop commercial areas in a manner which enhances the County’s character and ambiance. 
 
OBJECTIVE 17-1: Facilitate patterns of site development that appear purposeful and organized.  
 
Policy 17-1.4:  Affect the design of new commercial structures to provide an organized and purposeful 
character for the whole commercial environment. 
 
LIVABLE COMMUNITIES ELEMENT: GREATER PALM RIVER COMMUNITY PLAN 
 
Planning and Growth/Economic Development 
 
Goal 5a: Planning and Growth – to promote and provide for opportunities for compatible well designed 
public use, residential, and business growth and jobs 
 
Strategies 
 
8. Support well designed, compatible densities and intensities at appropriate locations. 
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AGENCY 

COMMENTS



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO: Zoning Technician, Development Services Department DATE: 01/05/2025 

REVIEWER: Sarah Rose, Senior Planner AGENCY/DEPT: Transportation 

PLANNING AREA/SECTOR:  GPR/Central PETITION NO:  RZ 24-1180 
 

 
  This agency has no comments. 

 

X  This agency has no objection. 
 

  This agency has no objection, subject to the listed or attached conditions. 
 

  This agency objects for the reasons set forth below. 
 
 
PROJECT SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant is requesting to rezone two parcels totaling +/- 3.03 acres from Agricultural 

Single Family Conventional (ASC-1) to Agricultural Single Family - 1 – Restricted (AS-1-R). 

The applicant is proposing to restrict the number of access points to Hartford St to one, which 

shall be designed as a shared access facility with the adjacent parcel to the east under Folio No. 

47350.0300. The site is located +/- 750 feet east of the intersection of S. 66th Street and Hartford. 

The Future Land Use designation of the site is Residential-6 (R-6).   

 

It is the applicant’s stated intent that the subject site will be utilizing the use of a landscape 

contractor’s nursery which is a conditional use permitted under the AS-1 zoning district as outlined 

in section 6.11.109 of the Land Development Code.  

 

The site currently has an open violation with Code Enforcement for a variety of issues, including 

an accessory use without primary use and outside open storage. Staff notes that once the applicant 

has obtained the proper zoning designation, they will be required to come through the 

site/construction review process, during which they will be required to comply with sidewalk, 

substandard road and any other applicable requirements.  
 

Trip Generation Analysis 

 

In accordance with the Development Review Procedures Manual (DRPM), no 

transportation analysis was required to process the proposed rezoning. Staff has prepared a 

comparison of the trips potentially generated under the existing and proposed zoning designations, 



utilizing a generalized worst-case scenario. Data presented below is based on the Institute of 

Transportation Engineer’s Trip Generation Manual, 11th Edition. 

Approved Uses:  

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak            
Hour Trips 

AM PM 
ASC-1, Single Family Detached 
(ITE Code 210) 3 Units  

28 3 3 

Proposed Uses: 

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak            
Hour Trips 

AM PM 
AS-1, Landscape Contractor’s Nursery 
(ITE Code 180) 32,997sqft 

324 55 64 

Trip Generation Difference: 

Zoning, Land Use/Size 24 Hour Two-
Way Volume 

Total Peak           
 Hour Trips 

AM PM 
Difference +296 +52 +61 

 
TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE SERVING THE SITE 

 

The site has frontage on Hartford St and S 70th St. Hartford St is a substandard 2-lane, 

undivided, County maintained, Rural Collector roadway. The roadway is characterized by +/- 10 

ft wide travel lanes, no bike lanes or sidewalks on either side of the roadway in the vicinity of the 

proposed project, within +/- 60 ft of the right of way.   

 

S 70th St is a substandard 2-lane, undivided, County maintained, Rural Collector roadway. 

The roadway is characterized by +/- 16 ft of pavement in average condition, no sidewalks or bike 

lanes on either side of the roadway in the vicinity of the proposed project, and within +/- 65 ft of 

the right of way.   
 
 
SITE ACCESS 

 

It is anticipated that the subject parcel under Folio No. 47349.0100 will take access to S 

70th St. Under the proposed restriction, the subject parcel under Folio No. 47350.0200 will have 

a singular access to Hartford St. which shall be designed as a shared access facility with the 

adjacent parcel to the east under Folio No. 47350.0300. 

 



Generally, for projects with a Euclidean zoning designation, a project’s potential 

transportation impacts, site access requirements, substandard road issues, site layout and design, 

other issues related to project access, and compliance with other applicable Hillsborough County 

Comprehensive Plan, Hillsborough County Land Development Code (LDC) and Hillsborough 

County Transportation Technical Manual (TTM) requirements are evaluated at the time of 

plat/site/construction plan review. Given the limited information available as is typical of all 

Euclidean zoned properties and/or non-regulatory nature of any conceptual plans provided, 

Transportation Review Section staff did review the proposed rezoning to determine (to the best of 

our ability) whether the zoning is generally consistent with applicable policies of  the Hillsborough 

County Comprehensive Plan, LDC and TTM (e.g. to ensure that the proposed rezoning would not 

result in a violation of the requirement whereby access to commercial properties cannot be taken 

through residentially or agriculturally zoned properties), and/or whether, in staff’s opinion, some 

reasonable level of development under the proposed zoning designation could be supported based 

on current access management standards (e.g. to ensure that a project was not seeking an 

intensification of a parcel which cannot meet minimum access spacing requirements).  

 

Transportation Section staff did not identify any concerns that would require a more 

detailed staff report be filed. Staff notes that, regardless of this review, the developer/property 

owner will be required to comply will all Comprehensive Plan, LDC, TTM and other applicable 

rules and regulations at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. As such, staff has no 

objection to this request.  

 

Staff notes that any plans or graphics presented as a part of a Euclidean zoning case are 

non-binding and will have no regulatory value at the time of plat/site/construction plan review. 

 
ROADWAY LEVEL OF SERVICE (LOS) INFORMATION 

 

Hartford St and S 70th St are not a regulated roadways and are not included in the 2020 

Hillsborough County Level of Service (LOS) Report. As such, no LOS information for this 

roadway can be provided 

 

 



Transportation Comment Sheet  
 

 

 

3.0 TRANSPORTATION SUMMARY (FULL TRANSPORTATION REPORT IN SECTION 9 OF STAFF REPORT)  

Adjoining Roadways (check if applicable) 
Road Name Classification Current Conditions Select Future Improvements 

Hartford St County Collector 
- Urban 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other (TBD) 

S 70th St. County Collector 
- Rural 

2 Lanes 
Substandard Road 
Sufficient ROW Width 

 Corridor Preservation Plan   
 Site Access Improvements  
 Substandard Road Improvements  
 Other (TBD) 

Project Trip Generation  Not applicable for this request 
 Average Annual Daily Trips A.M. Peak Hour Trips P.M. Peak Hour Trips 
Existing 28 3 3 
Proposed 324 55 64 
Difference (+/-) +296 +52 +61 
*Trips reported are based on net new external trips unless otherwise noted. 
 
Connectivity and Cross Access  Not applicable for this request 

Project Boundary Primary Access Additional 
Connectivity/Access Cross Access Finding 

North  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
South  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
East  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
West  Choose an item. Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 
 
Design Exception/Administrative Variance   Not applicable for this request 
Road Name/Nature of Request Type Finding 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
 Choose an item. Choose an item. 
Notes: 

4.0 Additional Site Information & Agency Comments Summary  

Transportation Objections Conditions 
Requested 

Additional 
Information/Comments 

 Design Exception/Adm. Variance Requested 
 Off-Site Improvements Provided 
 N/A 

 Yes  N/A 
 No 

 Yes 
 No 
 N/A 
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Environmental Excellence in a Changing World 
Environmental Protection Commission - Roger P. Stewart Center 

3629 Queen Palm Drive, Tampa, FL  33619  -   (813) 627-2600   -   www.epchc.org 
 

AGENCY COMMENT SHEET 
REZONING 

HEARING DATE: October 15, 2024 

PETITION NO.: 24-1180 

EPC REVIEWER: Abbie Weeks 

CONTACT INFORMATION: (813) 627-2600 X 1101 

EMAIL: weeksa@epchc.org  

COMMENT DATE: September 17, 2024 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 6809 Hartford St & 4109 
70th St, Tampa 

FOLIO #: 0473500200, 0473490100 

STR: 35-29S-19E 

REQUESTED ZONING: ASC-1 to AI-R 

FINDINGS 

WETLANDS PRESENT NO 
SITE INSPECTION DATE September 13, 2024 
WETLAND LINE VALIDITY NA  
WETLANDS VERIFICATION (AERIAL PHOTO, 
SOILS SURVEY, EPC FILES) 

No Wetlands 

The EPC Wetlands Division has reviewed the proposed rezoning. In the site plan’s current 
configuration, a resubmittal is not necessary. If the zoning proposal changes and/or the site plans are 
altered, EPC staff will need to review the zoning again. 
 
INFORMATIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The following specific comments are made for informational purposes only and to provide guidance as to 
the EPC review process.  However, future EPC staff review is not limited to the following, regardless of 
the obviousness of the concern as raised by the general site plan and EPC staff may identify other 
legitimate concerns at any time prior to final project approval. 
 
EPC staff reviewed the above referenced parcel in order to determine the extent of any wetlands and 
other surface waters pursuant to Chapter 1-11, Rules of the EPC. This determination was performed 
using aerial photography, soil surveys, and reviewing EPC files. Through this review, it appears that 
no wetlands or other surface waters exist onsite/ within the proposed construction boundaries. 
 
Please be advised this wetland determination is informal and non-binding. A formal wetland delineation 
may be applied for by submitting a “WDR30 - Delineation Request Application”. Once approved, the 
formal wetland delineation would be binding for five years. 
 

Aow/ 
 
ec: sjs@stephenjstanleylaw.com  



ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION
PO Box 1110  

Tampa, FL 33601-1110

Agency Review Comment Sheet
NOTE:  Wellhead Resource Protection Areas (WRPA), Potable Water Wellfield Protection 
Areas (PWWPA), and Surface Water Resource Protection Areas (SWRPA) reviews are based 
on the most current available data on the Hillsborough County maps, as set forth in Part 
3.05.00 of the Land Development Code.

TO: Zoning Review, Development Services REQUEST DATE: 8/26/2024

REVIEWER: Kim Cruz, Environmental Supervisor REVIEW DATE: 9/9/2024

PROPERTY OWNER: Hartford, LLC PID: 24-1180

APPLICANT: Hartford, LLC

LOCATION: 6809 Hartford St. Tampa, FL 33619
4109 70th St. Tampa, FL 33619

FOLIO NO.: 47350.0200, 47349.0100

AGENCY REVIEW COMMENTS:

At this time, according to the Hillsborough County BOCC approved maps adopted in the 
Comprehensive Plan, the site does not appear to be located within a Wellhead Resource Protection 
Area (WRPA), Potable Water Wellfield Protection Area (PWWPA) and/or Surface Water 
Resource Protection Area (SWRPA), as defined in Part 3.05.00 of the Hillsborough County Land 
Development Code (LDC).  

Hillsborough County EVSD has no recommended conditions and no request for additional 
information associated with wellhead protection.



AGENCY REVIEW COMMENT SHEET 
 

TO:  ZONING TECHNICIAN, Planning Growth Management DATE: 29 Aug. 2024 

REVIEWER:   Bernard W. Kaiser, Conservation and Environmental Lands Management 
APPLICANT:   Stephen Stanley PETITION NO:  RZ-STD 24-1180 
LOCATION:   6809 Hartford St., Tampa, FL  33619 

FOLIO NO:   47350.0200 & 47349.0100 SEC: 35   TWN: 29   RNG: 19 
 

 

 

  This agency has no comments. 

 

  This agency has no objection. 

 

 This agency has no objection, subject to listed or attached conditions.  

 

 This agency objects, based on the listed or attached conditions. 

   

COMMENTS:        . 

 
 



WATER RESOURCE SERVICES 
REZONING REVIEW COMMENT SHEET: WATER & WASTEWATER 

 
PETITION NO.:   RZ-STD 24-1180   REVIEWED BY:   Clay Walker, E.I. DATE:  8/27/2024  

  

FOLIO NO.:    47350.0200, 47349.0100                                                                                             

 

WATER 

  The property lies within the  City of Tampa  Water Service Area.  The applicant should 
contact the provider to determine the availability of water service. 

 A     inch water main exists  (adjacent to the site),  (approximately    feet from the 
site)                                                         . This will be the likely point-of-connection, 
however there could be additional and/or different points-of-connection determined at 
the time of the application for service. This is not a reservation of capacity.  

 Water distribution system improvements will need to be completed prior to connection to 
the County’s water system. The improvements include                                    and will 
need to be completed by the          prior to issuance of any building permits that will 
create additional demand on the system. 

 

WASTEWATER 

  The property lies within the  City of Tampa  Wastewater Service Area.  The applicant 
should contact the provider to determine the availability of wastewater service. 

 A     inch wastewater force main exists  (adjacent to the site),  (approximately     
feet from the site)                                . This will be the likely point-of-connection, 
however there could be additional and/or different points-of-connection determined at 
the time of the application for service. This is not a reservation of capacity.  

 Wastewater collection system improvements will need to be completed prior to 
connection to the County’s wastewater system. The improvements include               
and will need to be completed by the                prior to issuance of any building permits 
that will create additional demand on the system. 

                       

COMMENTS:                                                         . 
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·1· · · · · · MS. MARSHALL:· Today's agenda we have no remands,

·2· which brings us to Section C, Standard Rezoning Requests.

·3· · · · · · First item is Item C.1, Rezoning 24-1180.· The

·4· applicant is Hartford, LLC.· The request is to rezone to AS-1

·5· restricted.· Staff findings will be provided by

·6· Michelle Montalbano after presentation by the applicant.

·7· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· Is the applicant here?· Please

·8· come forward.· Give us your name and address please.· Good

·9· evening.

10· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Susan Swift representing Hartford, LLC.

11· Do you want me to go ahead with my presentation?

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yes.

13· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Have to go between before.

14· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Before she starts, I'm also here for the

15· applicant.

16· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Can you give us your name and address

17· please, sir.

18· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Stephen J. Stanley, 412 East Madison

19· Street, suite 1100.

20· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you so much.

21· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Before you start my time, let me make sure

22· I know what button to press.· There we go.· Thank you very much.

23· · · · · · I'm here with Mr. Stanley, who will help me answer any

24· questions and handle summary and rebuttal.

25· · · · · · I'm going to cover several things.· First of all,
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·1· Mr. Panoranda, our client, has operated this business here for

·2· 30 years.· And he just wants to continue operating his business.

·3· He was cited.· And this rezoning is intended to resolve that

·4· citation.

·5· · · · · · You will see -- I'll try to cover those issues.· Also,

·6· the land use and zoning issues, the industrial corridor that is

·7· along this road, Hartford Street, the abutting rezoning and the

·8· compliance compatibility and consistency issues.· The -- you'll

·9· see this aerial on this slide a lot because the aerial is much

10· more representative of what is really there than the land use of

11· Residential-6 and the zoning, which is currently ASC-1.

12· · · · · · Our client is the owner of RNP Sod, Inc.· He's owned

13· this lot, the vertical lot since 93.· He purchased the

14· horizontal lot in 97.· There's a mobile home where he conducts

15· his business out of.· It's an office, nobody lives there.· And

16· he now installs sod that he obtains from another site.

17· · · · · · In the past, he has had plants there.· He's had farm

18· animals there.· And at this point, he is interested, as I said,

19· in continuing his business.

20· · · · · · We originally applied for AIR.· And we were given a

21· couple of suggestions.· We applied for that, but Planning

22· Commission objected to that.· We down zoned it to AS-1.· And

23· we're focusing on making this a conditional use for landscape

24· contractors nursery.· It has -- we -- we -- as I said, we

25· amended this.· I think we will point out and your review of the
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·1· definitions, the various definitions that this may fall into.

·2· It really -- what he does there doesn't really fall into any

·3· definitions.· So at one point we tried to suggest a text

·4· amendment, that wasn't too favored.· So we changed and -- to a

·5· down zoning to apply for AS-1 as a conditional use for a

·6· landscape contractors nurse -- excuse me, nursery.

·7· · · · · · There, I know you can't read these, but these are the

·8· code conditions.· There are ten conditions.· The site and the

·9· applicant already meet nine of them, except for number two,

10· which requires planting plants to be planted, whether sod,

11· plants, whatever.· And the -- our client is willing to do that.

12· So, let's see here.

13· · · · · · Based on my planning analysis, we do believe that this

14· is compatible with the surrounding uses?· This is the Palm River

15· Community Planning area.· The site's right in the center of it.

16· If you look to the west, there's a three-mile industrial

17· corridor.· And I'll get back to that further.· The south side of

18· Hartford Street is much different than the north side.· And you

19· can see all the way to the port and the bay is industrial,

20· either light industrial or heavy industrial.

21· · · · · · But for the site next to the site, to the -- abutting

22· on the west, which I'll get to, and then this purple square

23· isn't exactly to scale, but that's the site.· So Hartford Street

24· on the south side is a three-mile industrial corridor until you

25· get to this lot.· And the last few blocks before you get to a
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·1· 100-foot storm water pond residential.· And 70th Street is a

·2· collector.

·3· · · · · · So, as you can see, our client's lot ASC-1 now has a

·4· truck -- tractor trailer site next to it.· This site was owned

·5· by the county.· It was sold to a leasing -- truck leasing

·6· company.· And it used the flex provision, that's why the map

·7· looks very different than what is there.· And I encourage you to

·8· go out to the site and the entire area to see how mixed it is.

·9· You can see to the north of here to the north -- northwest,

10· there's a lot of open storage.· Some of these businesses are run

11· out of homes as home occupations.· But there's a lot of open

12· storage in this area.

13· · · · · · In 2018, the Planning Commission said that the

14· adjacent PD zoning was compatible and consistent with the plan.

15· And it not only allows this truck leasing, but it allows

16· manufacturing on the whole site.· The truck leasing although

17· different from currently -- it's not supposed to store -- have

18· open storage on the east side of the site, but it did allow

19· manufacturing on the entire site with no buffer.· The only

20· buffer required on this PD was on the street on Hartford Street.

21· · · · · · And this shows that, that manufacturing is allowed, no

22· buffer on that adjacent site.

23· · · · · · So here we are, and I -- I will say that in the last

24· hours of this application and trying to get our client back to

25· business and get this citation removed, we agreed to a type B
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·1· buffer, not realizing how impractical it was.· And -- and I've

·2· given the staff a headsup on this.· And they had given us some

·3· other options.· So a -- a type A buffer is tough enough on this

·4· site.· A type -- type B buffer really eliminates even the

·5· planting area that's required to plant sod.

·6· · · · · · So I'm trying to be upfront about -- we're trying to

·7· get -- get to -- yes, on this site.· There may be an option for

·8· him to enclose the storage building.· That'll eliminate the open

·9· storage.· We had already agreed to shift, move or remove the --

10· one accessory structure that's on the -- on the property line or

11· right near it.· And I -- I guess the point is, when you look at

12· what's around us and you look at the buffering requirements here

13· and what he is being asked to do, it just doesn't seem

14· compatible with what's around it.· It seems unequal application

15· of things compared to what's around it.· And even the condition

16· number five in the landscape contractor's nursery talks about

17· having not needing a buffer if you have open storage within

18· 200 feet of the property line.

19· · · · · · Well, this is such an oddly shaped site and at the

20· Hartford Street is only 150 feet wide.· But I think it leads to

21· the fact that if you're doing planting, do you really need

22· evergreen trees and a solid fence, especially given the odd site

23· and what's around this -- this.

24· · · · · · The other things that I think you can see from here

25· is, it's really not as pure as the map shows.· The Land Use map
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·1· or the zoning map.· It is spot zoning, spot land use all over.

·2· The -- the light color, the -- the -- well, there's residential

·3· abutting industrial all over the place.· There is public.

·4· There's SMU-6 to the north of it.· You can barely see it on this

·5· site.· The light pink or light white.· There are spot zoning

·6· on -- on the right -- the right hand map, there's all different

·7· kinds of zoning.· So this is really a down zoning in order to,

·8· again, to put -- keep his business there.· We do think it's

·9· consistent with the plan.· We -- I won't go into all of these

10· citations, they're in my report.· It's supported by numerous

11· policies.· They're -- the Planning Commission's report did not

12· address this one policy that I mentioned in my report, which

13· relates to the commercial locational criteria, which is

14· commercial.· We -- we meet this.· I don't know why they don't

15· think the applies.· Again, they -- they think it's not

16· consistent with the plan.

17· · · · · · Again, my planning analysis, I think we show enough

18· evidence in our report and in this presentation to show that it

19· is a re -- redevelopment plan.· It's mapped.· It does meet this

20· criteria.· But that kind of leads to my almost last slide, which

21· is, there's a lot of inconsistencies in -- within the code and

22· in the plan for these kinds of small businesses.· Are they AG?

23· Are they commercial?· Are they residential?· I've been before

24· you before on case where we were being asked to do a buffer

25· in -- next to an ASC-1 or an AS-1 because it was said to be
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·1· residential.· We were protecting the residential.· But AG uses

·2· can have a chicken farm or a pig farm as a permitted use.· So

·3· those seem to be much more noxious uses than what our client is

·4· proposing here with some equipment and outdoor storage.

·5· · · · · · And I do think that we have to look at the -- the

·6· zoning impacts when we measure compatibility.· And, again, I

·7· won't read these, but there are a lot of -- there are a lot of

·8· in -- almost internal conflicts with -- when we say open storage

·9· is permitted and when it's not.· And I think, again, the -- the

10· conditions in this landscape are contractor nursery use provides

11· plenty of protection for those uses around it.· And, again, it

12· is -- it is a down zoning.

13· · · · · · So, again, this is on a three-mile industrial corridor

14· in the middle of Palm River near the port.· It's located on two

15· collector roads.· The -- the PD adjacent is on a local road on a

16· collector road.

17· · · · · · We think the -- the uses are compatible.· We believe

18· that it's consistent with the plan.· It -- again, it com --

19· already complies with nine of ten of the com -- of the

20· conditions and that our client is willing to meet the last

21· condition, which is to plant.· And then again, it seems like we

22· would want to apply the code consistently.· And when we look at

23· what was allowed next door, it really upends what our client

24· can -- can do and renders many of the uses in his current

25· zoning, not appropriate because now there are trailers and
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·1· potential manufacturing right next door.

·2· · · · · · So, thank you very much.· If I have any time left, I

·3· don't know if Mr. Stanley just wants to wait for our rebuttal

·4· time.

·5· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· I have a couple of

·6· questions --

·7· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Okay.

·8· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· -- before you go.

·9· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Thank you.

10· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· First, I just want to verify the

11· actual violation.· I saw a copy of it in the county's file and

12· it talked about the -- the verbiage was that there was an

13· accessory used without a primary use.· And then I see in your

14· narrative that you submitted some additional information and you

15· talk about the violations also for open storage.· But I didn't

16· see that on the actual violation.

17· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· It -- it is not on the actual -- the

18· second violation was something like there's two lots and they

19· used straddle two lots or something.· I -- I put in my report I

20· didn't really understand that.

21· · · · · · It -- the -- the citation wasn't for open storage.

22· All of the comments that we've received objecting to the AIR,

23· the -- all the other things that we've negotiated were discussed

24· with the staff of both the Planning Commission and the

25· Development Services staff have been about open storage.
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·1· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· Understood.

·2· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· So, I kind of --

·3· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· -- misspoke.

·5· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· That's okay.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · And then second, regard the -- I had a question about

·7· why you didn't submit a -- a commercial locational criteria

·8· waiver.· And your answer is that slide that you think you meet

·9· commercial locational criteria based on the -- the development

10· of the block face, is that correct?

11· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Yes.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· So you -- it's a difference of

13· opinion between you and the Planning Commission?

14· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Yes.

15· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Understood.· All right.· And tell me

16· how long your client has been operating as a sod company on this

17· property.

18· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· I believe 30 years.· Since -- since he

19· purchased it.

20· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· And do you have any idea

21· how -- I always like to get to the heart of why this is here.

22· Do you have any idea as to why there was a code enforcement

23· violation in the first place?

24· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· I will let Mr. Stanley note -- he knows

25· the history better than I.
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·1· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· Thank you so much.· If you

·2· could please sign in with the clerk's office.

·3· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Sir, can you answer the question?

·5· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Certainly.

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· And when you start, just give us your

·7· name for the record.

·8· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Stephen Stanley, 412 West Madison

·9· Street, Suite 1100.

10· · · · · · My understanding is that code enforcement was in the

11· area on another property.· And then they decided they were just

12· going to start investigating all the other properties in the

13· area.

14· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.

15· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· And that's how it came to.· And to -- to

16· further answer one of the questions you asked her about the open

17· storage.· Well, when we met with the code enforcement out there,

18· they came out and pointed to the open storage and pointed to

19· landscape contractor as a solution.· But they were mistaken

20· thinking the landscape contractor to go in ASC-1.· And after our

21· research, we determined it had to go into either AI and then

22· restricted.· And if that wasn't going to work, we had to drop

23· back to an AS-1.· That's why we're here.

24· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Thank you, sir.· Sign in

25· if you haven't already.
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·1· · · · · · We'll go to Development Services.· Good evening.

·2· · · · · · MS. MONTALBANO:· Good evening.· Michelle Montalbano,

·3· Development Services.

·4· · · · · · The applicant is proposing to rezone approximately

·5· three acres of property in the Greater Palm River area from

·6· ASC-1 to AS-1 with restrictions.· The request is to accommodate

·7· an existing sod installation company after a code enforcement

·8· notice of violation.· The applicant has proposed restrictions on

·9· the rezoning in response to staff concerns regarding the access

10· point and existing structures in required buffer areas.

11· · · · · · The parcel is adjacent to AS-1 zoned properties to the

12· north, east and south.· To the farther east is a single-family

13· housing development which is separated by a collector road and a

14· storm water retention area.· To the direct west is an

15· approximate nine acres -- acre property zoned PD, which allows

16· for manufacturing uses.· This parcel is currently used as a

17· tractor trail leasing site with open storage directly abutting

18· the subject rezoning site.

19· · · · · · After the rezoning, the sod installation company would

20· be subject to a site development review and be required to meet

21· the requirements for a landscaping -- and nursery and LDC

22· Section 6.11.109, which standards are intended to increase

23· compatibility of the commercial use in agricultural areas.

24· Since the applicant is not restricting the uses if the sod

25· installation uses seizes operation, typical AS-1 standards and
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·1· permitted use shall apply.

·2· · · · · · Transportation staff found no objection to the

·3· rezoning subject to the proposed condition.· For these reasons,

·4· staff finds the request approvable.· I'm available if you have

·5· any questions.

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· None at this time, but thank you so

·7· much.

·8· · · · · · MS. MONTALBANO:· Thank you.

·9· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Planning Commission.

10· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Good evening.· Alexis Myers, Planning

11· Commission staff.

12· · · · · · The subject site is located in the residential six

13· Future Land Use Category.· It is in the urban service area and

14· within the limits of Greater Palm River Community Plan.· Because

15· the applicant is requesting a rezoning to AS-1 with open storage

16· as accessory use, in a residential future land use category, the

17· request is inconsistent with the uses expected in the category.

18· · · · · · The proposed rezoning also does not align with the

19· character of the surrounding area and present compatibility

20· concerns given the nature of the area, which is inconsistent

21· with Future Land Use Policy, Objective 16 and policies related

22· to the neighborhood protection.

23· · · · · · The side also does not meet commercial locational

24· criteria, as the site is located 1,000 feet away from the

25· nearest major intersection.
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·1· · · · · · Based upon those considerations, Planning Commission

·2· staff finds that the proposed rezoning inconsistent with the

·3· Unincorporated Hillsborough County Comprehensive Plan, subject

·4· to the proposed conditions by the -- the Development Services

·5· Department.

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Ms. Myers, let me ask you --

·7· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· -- relevant to Ms. Swift's testimony

·9· that she disagrees with the Planning Commission that she

10· believes she qualifies for the policy that she does not have to

11· or that she qualifies to meet commercial locational criteria

12· because of the percentage of development of the block face.· If

13· you could just give me your thoughts on that.

14· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.· So we did do the calculations on --

15· and it -- it's 7,000 feet away from the -- from the

16· intersection.· It is not I believe within the 75 percent of

17· the -- of the subject site.· But yes, once we did the

18· calculations, that was 7,000 feet away.

19· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· So, it -- and I don't have that

20· policy in front of me.· She had it at -- on her slide.· But it's

21· my recollection that it also has to do with in fill and the

22· percentage of development within the block itself, is that

23· correct, the policy she showed?

24· · · · · · And we can -- we can ask her on rebuttal to pull that

25· back up.
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·1· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes, I would like to see if she could pull

·2· that policy back up.

·3· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Actually, Ms. Swift, if you could

·4· come and just cite the policy number so Ms. Myers can review it.

·5· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Yes.· It is -- and I -- I can put this

·6· side back up there if --

·7· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you.· And then I'll give you a

·8· minute to look at it.

·9· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· The policy is 25.3 in the Future Land Use

10· Element.

11· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· 25.3, okay.· All right.· Thank you

12· very much.

13· · · · · · Ms. Myers, we'll come back to you in a minute.

14· · · · · · All right.· So, now we'll go to proponents.· Is there

15· anyone in the audience or online that would like to speak in

16· favor of the application?· I'm seeing no one.

17· · · · · · Anyone in opposition to this request?· All right, no

18· body.

19· · · · · · Ms. Marshall, anything else?

20· · · · · · MS. MARSHALL:· Nothing further.

21· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.

22· · · · · · MS. MARSHALL:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· Ms. Myers, did we give

24· you enough time?

25· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Okay.· So we -- we did not note this
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·1· policy in the -- in our report, but we did note Policies 22.7

·2· and 22.7, which notes that meeting the commercial locational

·3· criteria is not only the factor to be taken into consideration.

·4· And we also noted 22.8, which -- sorry, give me one second.

·5· · · · · · 22.8, which is in regards to the waiver for the

·6· intersection.

·7· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.

·8· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· But we did not note 22.7.

·9· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· But am -- am I correct

10· that 25.3 is if your block is more than 50 percent developed

11· that you do meet -- that commercial locational criteria is not

12· applicable or you do meet it?

13· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Sorry, you said 25 --

14· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· 25.3 is the policy that Ms. Swift

15· cited.

16· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes, that is correct.

17· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· Thank you so much.  I

18· appreciate it.

19· · · · · · All right.· So we've gone back to Development

20· Services.· And now it is the applicant's turn for rebuttal.· You

21· have five minutes.

22· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Oh, I was going to show that slide.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· You can.· Yeah.· Absolutely.

24· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· It's gone.· I'm sorry.· Okay, thanks.

25· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· And just give us your name real quick
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·1· before you start.

·2· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Susan Swift, Fox Engineering.

·3· · · · · · It's right at the end almost.· Yeah, that -- this is

·4· the policy and I think it's a -- we interpreted this.  I

·5· interpreted this to mean that we did meet the -- this

·6· requirement and that this meant we don't have to apply for -- at

·7· this exempted us from applying for a locational criteria waiver

·8· because it wasn't applicable based on this being in a

·9· redevelopment area.

10· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Okay.· Understood.

11· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Yeah.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Sorry, if I could --

14· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yeah, do you want to comment?

15· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.

16· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Ms. Swift, if you could just because

17· this is so on point to this -- this argument, I'm going to allow

18· Ms. Myers of the Planning Commission to comment on that.

19· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· Sure.· Sure.

20· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Go ahead.

21· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.· Alexis Myers, Planning Commission

22· staff.

23· · · · · · So this is actually in regards to if the site is

24· already zoned as a commercial use.

25· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· It did -- I did see that.· It said
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·1· zoned or used, I did see in the --

·2· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· -- so it makes that distinction.· But

·4· I'll defer to you for that opinion.

·5· · · · · · MS. MYERS:· Yes.· All right.· I just want to --

·6· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you.· I appreciate it.

·7· · · · · · Go ahead, Ms. Swift.

·8· · · · · · MS. SWIFT:· I -- I was going to say hence my referral

·9· to schizophrenia of the -- of the Land Development Code in the

10· plan and how they treat these.· Did you want that aerial up?

11· Yeah.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· So, you have a little over four

13· minutes left on your rebuttal.

14· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Going Stephen Stanley on behalf of the

15· -- the applicant.· 412 West Madison Street, Suite 1100.

16· · · · · · Just, you know, just -- just sum it up.· I'm not as

17· good with the computer, but I'll use the overhead if it works.

18· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Yeah, I see it.

19· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Okay.· Okay.· Her -- her picture on --

20· in the computer was much better.· But the point is, you know, if

21· you drive this area, you get off up north and you drive down

22· through an industrial district.· And then you get down to

23· Hartford and you're still in an industrial district.· And all

24· the way over almost until you get to the -- well, you know, it's

25· gray even all the way over until the lot before the subject
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·1· property.· The lot that is -- got a PD for a manufacturing open

·2· storage for trailers zoning.· I mean, it -- it abuts the subject

·3· property.· So, you know, we're looking at a transition to go

·4· from industrial to the residential on the other side of that

·5· drainage canal lake, which makes this completely compatible.

·6· And you talk about like a -- like it's a commercial zoning.

·7· It's -- it's an agriculture.

·8· · · · · · It's the land use contractors nursery, which it --

·9· it's not selling retail plants on the site.· It's still an

10· agricultural type use.· So, you know, I'm a little concerned

11· we're -- where we're going to, you know, try to compare this and

12· an AS-1 zoning that we're asking for to a PD that allows

13· manufacturing in heavy commercial zoning.· I mean, we're not

14· that.· So that's another reason why I think, you know, that the

15· waiver is not necessary for the commercial matter.

16· · · · · · But be that as it may, you've seen this.· So you --

17· the real picture is when you're close to the subject site, I

18· mean, look north and look next door, it's all industrial.· It's

19· got a few houses scattered on the north side going further east.

20· But like Susan said, there's open storage and there's trailers

21· and there's tractors and there's all kinds of industrial heavy

22· uses on those properties.

23· · · · · · We -- we're here because code enforcement said, we

24· can't do what we're doing on an ASC-1 zoning.· They said that at

25· first time and they came out and said, we're here, new landscape
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·1· contractor, you can do that here.· And I had to go through the

·2· grid and point out to them, no, it says you can't.· So it --

·3· it's -- it's just unbelievable that we have been given such a

·4· hard time about trying to get this property zoned so it's

·5· compatible with the code, with code enforcement.

·6· · · · · · And again, if you look at this site and the properties

·7· around it, it's outlined in the blue so you can see it better.

·8· But it's -- it's not like we're trying to put a -- an industrial

·9· use right next to residential.· It's not an industrial use.

10· It's a landscape contractor that installs sod.

11· · · · · · And about the buffering.· At first, they said, well,

12· if you would enclose the open storage by three sides, you

13· wouldn't have the problem.· And at first, my client didn't want

14· to do that.· But then when he hears that now he's got to put

15· fencing and evergreens along the whole site, he would rather

16· enclose the open storage, which would eliminate open storage.

17· He encloses equipment.· So we want that, you know, we want to

18· throw that out there.· So --

19· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· So, is it your --

20· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Thank you for your --

21· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· -- is it your testimony that your

22· client is willing to enclose the open storage --

23· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Yes.

24· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· -- area?

25· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Absolutely.· I talked to him about it.
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·1· I went over the -- the options with him.· And I said -- and he

·2· said, yeah, he -- in that case, he -- he'd rather enclose the

·3· open storage than to do all of the other buffering.

·4· · · · · · And when you look at the site and the other

·5· properties, we -- you know, Susan said, well, it's a 150 from

·6· Hartford.· But from 70, it's like 300/400/500 feet, you know.

·7· So the thing in the -- in the landscape contractor said you

·8· could have open storage if it -- if you -- but you have to

·9· buffer if it's 200 feet.· So we're saying, well, we'll just

10· enclose all the open storage so we won't have a buffering

11· problem.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Let me ask staff.· Just hold that

13· thought for one moment and let me ask Ms. Marshall.

14· · · · · · So that second condition for a landscape contractor

15· nursery, that second condition that requires the -- the

16· buffering and the plantings and so forth, is that correct that

17· that would not be required if they enclose the open storage?

18· · · · · · MS. MARSHALL:· The -- the specific condition is in

19· regards to the moving of that structure outside of the buffer.

20· But the -- the use itself just as a landscape contractor's

21· nursery would -- it would still require buffer and screening

22· between -- it would be considered a group five use.

23· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Even if they take the open storage

24· off the table?

25· · · · · · MS. MARSHALL:· Correct.
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·1· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Understood.· Okay.

·2· · · · · · So you would still -- I mean, it's up to you how you

·3· want to present this, but if you're offering to enclose the open

·4· storage, you've heard the testimony of staff, you're still

·5· obligated to provide the required buffering and screening.

·6· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Well, if they're going to require the

·7· required buffering and screening, I guess we won't enclose it.

·8· I mean, it doesn't make any sense.

·9· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Totally up to you.

10· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· But, you know, the emails I got were,

11· you know, if you enclose the open storage, you won't have the

12· problem.

13· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.· So we are well past the

14· rebuttal period.· So if we could just wrap up your rebuttal

15· comments and we're going to close the case.

16· · · · · · MR. STANLEY:· Well, you know, the client is going to

17· continue -- wants to continue doing what he's been doing for

18· 30 years.· What -- you know, this man has been -- had the -- the

19· jobs to install the turf at Raymond James Stadium and the

20· Yankees Spring Training Facilities.· That's the type -- and

21· Busch Gardens.· But he doesn't -- he's not doing it on the site.

22· He's -- he -- he's picking up the sod and taking it and

23· installing it.· In some cases they may drop off some sod on the

24· site and he takes it and installs it.· But he -- he's not

25· installing stuff on the site.· I mean, it's not that strong of
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·1· of -- of an operation.

·2· · · · · · And we kept hearing the open storage was the issue.

·3· So we were trying to resolve the open storage issue by willing

·4· to enclose it.· But now they're saying, you're not going to

·5· resolve it that way.· You still have to screen because of the --

·6· the landscape contractor.· Even though the landscape contractor

·7· is saying if -- you know, it sounds like they're saying if you

·8· can't see the open storage, then there's no reason to -- to do

·9· it.· So, anyway.

10· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· All right.

11· · · · · · Mr. STANLEY:· Thanks for your time.

12· · · · · · HEARING MASTER:· Thank you.· I appreciate it.

13· · · · · · And with that, we'll close Rezoning 24-1180 and go to

14· the next case.

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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· · · · · · · · · · · HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
· · · · · · · · · · ·BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
·

· · ------------------------------X
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · IN RE:· · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ZONE HEARING MASTER· · · · · ·)
· · HEARINGS· · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ------------------------------X
·

· · · · · · · · · · ·ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
· · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS
·

· · · · · · · BEFORE:· · · · Pamela Jo Hatley
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Land Use Hearing Master
·

· · · · · · · DATE:· · · · · Monday, December 16, 2024

· · · · · · · TIME:· · · · · Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Concluding at 9:07 p.m.
·

· · · · · · · · · LOCATION:· ·Hillsborough County BOCC
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 601 East Kennedy Boulevard, Second
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Floor
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Tampa, Florida 33601
·

·

·

·

·

·

· · Reported by:
· · Crystal Reyes, AAERT No. 1660
· · Digital Reporter

·
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·1· · · · · · Item A.16, PD 24-1139.· This application is being

·2· continued by the applicant to the January 14, 2025 ZHM Hearing.

·3· · · · · · Item A.17, Major Mod 24-1141.· This application is out

·4· of order to be heard and is being continued to the

·5· January 14, 2025 ZHM Hearing.

·6· · · · · · Item A.18, PD 24-1147.· This application, is out of

·7· order to be heard and is being continued to the

·8· February 18, 2025 ZHM -- 2025 ZHM Hearing.

·9· · · · · · Item A.19, Major Mod 24-1152.· This application is

10· being continued by staff to the January 14, 2025 ZHM Hearing.

11· · · · · · Item A.20, PD 24-1155.· This application is out of

12· order to be heard and is being continued January 14, 2025 ZHM

13· Hearing.

14· · · · · · Item A.21, PD 24-1169.· This application is out of

15· order to be heard and is being continued to the

16· February 18, 2025 ZHM Hearing.

17· · · · · · Item A.22, PD 24-1172.· This application has been

18· withdrawn from the hearing process.

19· · · · · · Item A.23, Standard Rezoning 24-1180.· This

20· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

21· to the January 14, 2025 ZHM Hearing.

22· · · · · · Item A.24, PD Rezoning 24-1202.· This application is

23· being continued by the applicant to January 14, 2025 ZHM

24· Hearing.

25· · · · · · Item A.25, Standard Rezoning 24-1210.· This
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·

·
· · · · · · · · · · · HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY, FLORIDA
· · · · · · · · · · ·BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

· · ------------------------------X
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · IN RE:· · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ZONE HEARING MASTER· · · · · ·)
· · HEARINGS· · · · · · · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
· · ------------------------------X
·

· · · · · · · · · · ·ZONING HEARING MASTER HEARING
· · · · · · · · TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND PROCEEDINGS
·

· · · · · · · BEFORE:· · · · Brian Grady
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Development Services
·

· · · · · · · DATE:· · · · · Tuesday, October 15, 2024

· · · · · · · TIME:· · · · · Commencing at 6:00 p.m.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Concluding at 6:06 p.m.
·

· · · · · · · · · LOCATION:· ·Hillsborough County BOCC
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 601 East Kennedy Boulevard
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · Tampa, Florida 33601

·

·

·

·

·

· · Reported by:
· · Diane DeMarsh, AAERT No. 1654
·

·
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·1· out of order to be heard and is being continued to the

·2· December 16, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·3· · · · · · Item A.13, Rezoning PD 24-0924.· This application is

·4· out of order to be heard and is being continued to the

·5· November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·6· · · · · · Item A.14, Major Mod Application 24-0933.· This

·7· application is out of order and is being continued to the

·8· November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·9· · · · · · Item A.15, Rezoning PD 24-01013 (sic).· This

10· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

11· to the November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

12· · · · · · Item A.16, Rezoning PD 24-1040.· This application is

13· out of order to be heard and is being continued to the

14· November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

15· · · · · · Item A.17, Rezoning Standard 24-1060.· This

16· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

17· to the November 12, 24 -- 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

18· · · · · · Item A.18, Rezoning PD 24-1075 -- 1075.· This

19· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

20· to the November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

21· · · · · · Item A.19, Rezoning Standard 24-1142.· This

22· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

23· to the November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

24· · · · · · Item A.20, Rezoning Standard 24-1180.· This

25· application is being continued by the applicant to the
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·1· December 16, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·2· · · · · · Item A.21, Rezoning Standard 24-1203.· This

·3· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

·4· to the November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·5· · · · · · Item A.22, Rezoning Standard 24-1204.· This

·6· application is out of order to be heard and is being continued

·7· to the November 12, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

·8· · · · · · Item A.23, Rezoning Standard 24-1206.· This

·9· application is being continued by staff to the November 12, 2024

10· Zoning Hearing Master Hearing.

11· · · · · · And Item A.24, Rezoning Standard 24-1210.· It's being

12· continued by the applicant to the November 12, 2024 Zoning

13· Hearing Master Hearing.

14· · · · · · And that includes the published withdrawals and

15· continuances.

16· · · · · · Now, the following items, which were scheduled to be

17· heard tonight, again, are con -- are being continued by staff to

18· the October 28, 2024 Zoning Hearing Master Hearing at 6:00 p.m.

19· Again, due to hurricane recovery reasons associated with the

20· recent hurricane, they're being continued to a rescheduled

21· hearing.

22· · · · · · The first item is Item C.1, Rezoning Standard 24-1023.

23· Again, it's being continued to October 28th.

24· · · · · · Next item is Item C.2, Rezoning Standard 24-1082 and

25· being continued by staff to the October 28, 2024 Zoning Hearing
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JANUARY 14, 2025 – ZONING HEARING MASTER 
 
 

1 

The Zoning Hearing Master (ZHM), Hillsborough County, Florida, met in Regular 
Meeting, scheduled for Tuesday, January 14, 2025, at 6:00 p.m., in the 
Boardroom, Frederick B. Karl County Center, Tampa, Florida, and held 
virtually. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m., led in the 
pledge of allegiance to the flag, and introduction. 

A. WITHDRAWALS AND CONTINUANCES 

Colleen Marshall, Development Services (DS), introduced staff and reviewed 

the changes to the agenda.  Continued with the 
changes/withdrawals/continuances. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, overview of ZHM process. 

Senior Assistant County Attorney Mary Dorman, overview of 
evidence/ZHM/BOCC Land Use process. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, Oath. 

B. REMANDS – None. 
C. REZONING STANDARD (RZ-STD): 

C.1. RZ 24-1180 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-1180. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-1180. 

C.2. RZ 24-1210 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-1210. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-1210. 

C.3. RZ 25-0175 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 25-0175. 

Testimony provided. 



TUESDAY, JANUARY 14, 2025 
 
 

2 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 25-0175. 

D. REZONING-PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (RZ-PD) & MAJOR MODIFICATION (MM): 

D.1. RZ 24-0459 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-0459. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-0459. 

D.2. MM 24-0468 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called MM 24-0468. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed MM 24-0468. 

D.3. RZ 24-0924 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-0924. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, continued RZ 24-0924 to March 24, 2025, ZHM hearing. 

D.4. RZ 24-1212 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-1212. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-1212. 

D.5. RZ 24-1261 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-1261. 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-1261. 

D.6. RZ 24-1262 

Colleen Marshall, DS, called RZ 24-1262. 
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3 

Testimony provided. 

Susan Finch, ZHM, closed RZ 24-1262. 

E. ZHM SPECIAL USE – None. 
ADJOURNMENT 

Susan Finch, ZHM, adjourned the meeting at 9:08 p.m. 
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